
BEFORE THE 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 


DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 


In the Matter of the Accusation Against: 

AR EX FIGUEROA PHARMACY 

AR EX PHARMACY MANCHESTER 

AREXPHARMACY 

ROBERT A. GANTT 

RICHARD A. FOSTER 

CLAUDE ANTHONY REESE 

JOSEPH SHEDRED ALEXANDER 

Respondents. 

Case No. 2516 
OAR No. L 2006050778 

DECISION AND ORDER AS TO RESPONDENT ALEXANDER . " ".. -

The attached Stipulated Sun'ender of License and Order is hereby adopted by the 

Board ofPhanllacy, Depmilnent of Consulner Affairs, as its Decision in this Inatter. 

This Decision shall becolne effective on March 28, 2007 

It is so ORDERED __Fe_b.:...-ru....;....;:.;;.aryc......J.--=2-=6L-I-::;2:...:..0-=07-'---_ 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

I:\ALL\WILSON\AREX By 
WILLIAM POWERS 
Board President 
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BILL LOCK.YER, Attorney General 
of the State of Califonlia 

GLORIA A. BARRIOS 
Supervising Deputy Attonley General 
SUSAN MELTON WILSON, State Bar No. 106092 

Deputy Attonley General 
Califonlia DepaIiment of Justice 
300 So. Spring Street, Suite 1702 
Los Angeles, CA 90013 
Telephone: (213) 897-4942 
Facsiluile: (213) 897-2804 

Attorneys for Conlp lainant 

BEFORE THE 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 


DEP ARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 


In the Matter of the Accusation Against: 

AR EX FIGUEROA PHARMACY 
600 West Manchester Boulevard 
Los Angeles, Califonlia 90044 
owned by : 
AR EX PHARMACIES INC. 
Original Phanllacy Penllit No. PHY 14973 

and 

AR EX PHARMACY MANCHESTER 
600 West Manchester Boulevard 
Los Angeles, Califonlia 90044 
owned by: 
AR EX PHARMACIES INC. 
Original Phannacy Penllit No. PHY 44568 

and 

AREXPHARMACY 
3701 Stocker Street 
Los Angeles, Califonlia 90008 
owned by: 
AR EX PHARMACIES INC. 
Original Phannacy Pennit No. PHY 19542 

and 

AREXPHARMACY 
3701 Stocker Street 
Los Angeles, California 90008 
owned by: 
AR EX PHARMACIES INC. 
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Case No. 2516 

STIPULATED SETTLEMENT 
AND DISCIPLINARY ORDER 
AS TO RESPONDENT 
ALEXANDER 
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Original Phannacy Pennit No. PHY 44567 

and 

AR EX PHARMACY 
2829 S. Western Avenue 
Los Angeles, Califon1ia 90048-3033 
owned by: 
AR EX PHARMACIES INC. 
Original Phannacy Pennit No. PHY 41441 

and 

ROBERT A. GANTT 
3701 Stocker Street 
Los Angeles, Califon1ia 90008 

Original Phannacist License 
No. RPH 17807, 

and 

RICHARD A. FOSTER 
320 West 122nd Street 
Los Angeles, Califon1ia 90061 

Original Phan11acist License 
No. RPH 21138, 

and 

CLAUDE ANTHONY REESE
1900 South Point View Street 
Los Angeles, Califon1ia 90034 

Original PhaI'lnacist License 
No. RPH 22845, 

and 

JOSEPH SHEDRED ALEXANDER 
3646 Virginia Road 
Los Angeles, Califonua 90016 

Original Phannacist License 
No. RPH 17981, 

Respondents. 

In the interest of resolving this matter in a Inam1er consistent with the public 

interest and the responsibility of the Board ofPhannacy of the Departlnent of Consulner Affairs, 
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the parties hereby agree to the following Stipulated Settlelnent and Disciplinary Order, which 

will be submitted to the Board for approval and adoption as the final disposition of the 

Accusation with respect to Respondent JOSEPH SHEDRED ALEXANDER onlyl. 

PARTIES 

1. At the tilne the Accusation was filed, Patricia F. Hani.s (Colnplainant), 

was the Executive Officer of the Board of Pharmacy, and brought this action solely in her official 

capacity. Virginia Herold is the current InteriIn Executive Office of the Board ofPhannacy. Both 

are represented in this Inatter by Bill Lockyer, Atton1ey General of the State of California, by 

Susan Melton Wilson, Deputy Attorney General. 

2. On or about October 22, 1949, the Board of Pharmacy issued Original 

Phannacist License Number RPH 17981 to JOSEPH SHEDRED ALEXANDER (Respondent). 

The Original Phan11acist License was in full force and effect at all tin1es relevant to the charges 

herein and expired on Septelnber 30, 2006, and has not been renewed. 

3. Respondent is represented by Law Offices of Matthew C. Long, by Mr. 

Matthew C. Long, Attorney at Law, 3580 Wilshire Boulevard, Suite 1785, Los Angeles, 

Califon1ia, 90010. 

JURISDICTION 

4. Accusation No. 2516 was filed before the Board ofPhannacy, Departn1ent 

of Consluner Affairs (Board), and is currently pending against Respondent. The Accusation and 

all other statutorily required docun1ents were properly served to Respondent on or about 

Septelnber 9, 2004. Respondent has tilnely filed his Notice of Defense contesting the 

Accusation. The 6th and 7th causes of the Accusation were an1ended by interlineation by Order of 

Adn1inistrative Law Judge Carolyn Magnuson on Noven1ber 20,2006. A copy of Accusation No. 

1 The Board previously issued its Order resolving this Accusation as against all naIned 
Respondents, but for Respondents Alexander and Richard A. Foster. Effective Novelnber 15, 
2006, the Board accepted the surrender of Respondents Robert A. Gantt and Claude Anthony 
Reese, and al1naIned facility pennits (Phy 14973, Phy 44568, Phy 19542, Phy 44567 and Phy 
41441).A separate stipulation for resolution of this Accusation against Respondent Foster is also 
sublnitted herewith for the Board's consideration. 
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2516, as amended by interlineation, is attached as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by this 

reference. 

ADVISEMENT AND WAIVERS 

5. Respondent has carefully read, and understands the charges and allegations 

of Accusation No. 2516, as a1nended. Respondent also has carefully read, and understands the 

effects of this Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order. 

6. Respondent is fully aware of his legal rights in this 1natter, including the 

right to a hearing on the charges and allegations in the Accusation; the right to be represented by 

counsel, at his own expense; the right to confront and cross-exatnine the witnesses against hiIn; 

the right to present evidence and to testify on his own behalf; the right to the issuance of 

subpoenas to conlpel the attendance of witnesses and the production of doculnents; the right to 

reconsideration and cou1i review of an adverse decision; and all other rights accorded by the 

Califonlia Adlninistrative Procedure Act and other applicable laws. 

7. Respondent voluntarily, knowingly, and intelligently waives and gives up 

each and every right set f01ih above. 

CULP ABILITY 

8. Respondent JOSEPH SHEDRED ALEXANDER adnlits -the tnlth of 

paragraphs 1,2,3,10 through 33 inclusive, and allegations of paragraphs 35,36, and 37 peliaining 

to dates post Septenlber 1,1999, of Accusation No. 2516, as anlended, and agrees that cause 

exists for discipline and hereby surrenders his active license to practice Phannacy in the State of 

California, and hereby agrees to aSSlune the status of "retired phannacist" as defined in Business 

and Professions Code section 4200.5, and agrees that he will pay to the Board, within thi1iy 

(30) days of his execution of this agreenlent, the $30.00 fee required to effect the referenced 

change in status, per Business and Professions Code Section 4400(w). 

9. Respondent Alexander understands that, as a result of the retirenlent of 

his license, he nlay no longer engage in any activity for which a phannacist' s license is required. 

10. Respondent Alexander further understands that after the retirenlent of his 

license, should he apply to the Board to restore his license to active status, he shall be required 
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to take and pass the exanlination that is required for initial licensure with the Board. 

11. Respondent Alexander understands that by signing this stipulation, he 

enables the Board to issue an order accepting the surrender of his active license as final 

disposition of the Accusation, without fUIiher process. 

12. It is stipulated and agreed that the Board had incurred costs in the 

investigation and prosecution of this nlatter within the Ineaning of Business and Professions 

Code Section 125.3, and that a fair and reasonable pOliion of said costs attributable to 

Respondent is the SUln of Two Thousand, Five Hundred Dollars ($2,500.00). 

13. In consideration of this settlenlent agreeinent, Respondent Alexander 

agrees to reiInburse a pOliion of costs incurred by the Board in this nlatter by paYlnent of the 

sunl of Two Thousand, Five Hundred Dollars ($2,500.00) to the Board within 90 days of the 

effective date of this order. 

CONTINGENCY 

14. This stipulation shall be subject to approval by the Board ofPhannacy. 

Respondent understands and agrees that counsel for COlnplainant and the staff of the Board of 

Phannacy Inay conlnlunicate directly with the Board regarding this stipulation and settlenlent, 

without notice to or pilliicipation by the Respondent. By signiilg the stipulation, ReSpC)11de11t 

understands and agrees that he nlay not withdraw his agreeinent or seek to rescind the stipulation 

prior to the titne the Board considers and acts upon it. If the Board fails to adopt this stipulation 

as its Decision and Order, the Stipulated Settletnent and Disciplinary Order shall be of no force 

or effect, except for this paragraph, it shall be inadnlissible in any legal action between the 

patiies, and the Board shall not be disqualified from futiher action by having considered this 

Inatter. 

15. The patiies understand and agree that facsitnile copies of this Stipulated 

Settlement and Disciplinary Order, including facsiinile signatures thereto, shall have the satne 

force and effect as the originals. 

16. In consideration of the foregoing adtnissions and stipulations, the patiies 

agree that the Board may, without futiher notice or fonnal proceeding, issue and enter the 
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following Order in resolution of Accusation Number 2516, as alnended, as against this 

Respondent: 

ORDER 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the active license of Respondent JOSEPH 

SHEDRED ALEXANDER is sUlTendered and accepted by the Board of Pharmacy. The 

sunender of this Respondent's active license and the acceptance of the sUlTendered license by the 

Board shall constitute the ilnposition of discipline against this Respondent. This stipulation 

constitutes a record of the discipline and shall becolne a pati of the Respondent's license history 

with the Board. 

1. Respondent shall lose all rights and privileges as a Phannacist in 

Califon1ia as of the effective date of the Board's Decision and Order. 

2. Respondent shall cause to be delivered to the Board both his wall and 

pocket license certificate on or before the effective date of the Decision and Order. 

3. Respondent shall be pennitted to aSSlune the status of "retired phannacist" 

as defined in Business and Professions Code section 4200.5, upon payn1ent of costs and fees, 

per the stipulated settlelnent agreelnent. 

4. . Should Respondent ever apply for relic ensure or petition for reinstaten1ent . 

in the State of California, the Board shall treat it as a new application for licensure. Respondent 

must cOlnply with all the laws, regulations and procedures for licensure in effect at the tilne the 

application or petition is filed, and all of the charges and allegations contained in Accusation No. 

2516 shall be deen1ed to be tnle, cOlTect, and adn1itted by Respondent when the Board 

detenllines whether to grant or deny any such application or petition. 

5. Respondent n1ay not reapply for licensure for at least three years fron1 the 

effective date of this decision. 

III 

III 

III 

III 
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1ha've carefully read the Stipula.ted. Seulc!nent and. Disciplinary Order. I 


understand the stipulation a.nd the effec,t it win have on n1Y license. I enter into th1s Stipulated 


Settlen1erlt voh.mtari.1y, kno\\,rll1g1y, al"l.d intenigently~ and agree to be bound by m,e Dt:;<',lslcrn and 


Order of the Board ofPh(lrmac.!y. 


I concur in the Stipulated Settlernent and Discipli'nary Order. 

The foregoing Stip"u.la.ted. Settlenlent and Disci.plinary ()rder is hereby respectfully 

subrnitt.ed for consideratir.m by the })Qard of Pharmacy {)f the Department of Con.sUl'ller Affairs, 

DATED: 

BILL LOCKYER., Attorney Gener~l 
of the Stat~ of California 
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BILL LOCI(YER, Attorney General 
of the State of Califonlia 

SUSAN MELTON WILSON; State Bar No. 106092 
Deputy Attorney General 

California Departnlent of Justice 
300 So. Spring Street, Suite 1702 
Los Angeles, CA 90013 
Telephone: (213) 897-4942 
Facsinlile: (213) 897-2804 

Attorneys for C0111plainant 

BEFORE THE 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
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AR EX FIGUEROA PHARMACY 
600 West Manchester Boulevard 
Los Angeles, California 90044 
owned by : 
AREXPHARMACIESINC. 
Original Phanllacy Pernlit No. PRY 14973 

AR EX PHARMACY MANCHESTER 
600 West Manchester Boulevard 
Los Angeles, California 90044 
owned by: 
AR EX PI--IARMACIES INC. 
Original Pharnlacy Penl1it No. PRY 44568 

AR EX PHARMACY 
3701 Stocker Street 
Los Angeles, California 90008 
owned by: 
AR EX PHARMACIES INC. 
Otiginal Phanl1acy Penl1it No. PHY 19542 

AR EX FHARMACY 
3701 Stocker Street 
Los Angeles, Califonlia 90008 
owned by: 
AR EX PHARMACIES INC. 
Original Phanllacy Pennit No. PRY 44567 

Case No. 2516 

ACCUSATION 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

AR EX PHARMACY 
2829 S. Westel11 Avenue 
Los Angeles, Califol11ia 90048-3033 
owned by: 
AR EX PJ-IARMACIES INC. 
Original PhaDnacy PeDl1it No. PHY 41441 

and 

ROBERT A. GANTT 
3701 Stocker Street 
Los Angeles, California 90008 

Original PhaDllacist License 
No. RPH 17807, 

and 

RICHARD A. FOSTER 
320 West 122nd Street 
Los Angeles, CalifoDlia 90061 

Original Phannacist License 
No. RPH 21138, 

and 

CLAUDE ANTHONY REESE 
1900 South Point View Street 
Los Angeles, CalifoDlia 90034 

Original Phal111acist License 
No. RPH 22845, 

and 

JOSEPJ-I SHEDRED ALEXANDER 
3646 Virginia Road 
Los Angeles, CalifoDlia 90016 

Original PhaDl1acist License 
No. RPH 17981, 

Respondents. 

Conlplainant alleges: 

/ / / 

/ / / 
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PARTIES 

1. Patricia F. :HalTis (Conlplainant) brings this Accusation solely in her 

official capacity as the Executive Officer of the Board ofPhannacy, Depmi111ent ofConsunler 

Affairs. 

AR EX FIGUEROA PHARMACY - 600 W. MANCHESTER BLVD. 

2. On or about June 6, 1969, the Board ofPhannacy issued Original 

Phanl1acy Penl1it No. PHY 14973 to Ar Ex Pharmacies, Inc., a corporation, licensed to do 

business as AR EX FIGUEROA PHARMACY, located at 600 West Manchester Boulevard in 

the City of Los Angeles. Said license was in full force and effect between date of issuance and 

Septenlber 14, 2000 when a change of ownership occulTed. 

COlJ2orate officers of record with the Board and phannacist(s) in charge ofPHY 

14973 were ROBERT GANTT and CLYDE HATCH; 

Phanllacist-in-charge of AR EX Figueroa between date of issuance and July 2, 

1999 was CLYDE HATCH, deceased. Phanllacist in charge between August 24, 1999 and 

Septe1nber 14, 2000 was JOSEPH SHEDRED ALEXANDER. 

AR EX PHARMACY MANCHESTER - 600 W. MANCHESTER BLVD. 

3. On or about August 24, 2000, the Board of Phat111acy issued Original 

Phanl1acy Pernlit Nllll1ber PRY 44568 to AI' Ex Phannacies, Inc., to operate a phanllacy at the 

fonl1er location of AR EX FIGUEROA PHARMACY, but with a different nanle, AR EX 

PHARMACY MANCHESTER, at 600 West Manchester Boulevard, in the City of Los Angeles. 

Corporate officers of record at all tinles nlentioned herein between date of 

issuance and August 24, 2000 were ROBERT GANTT and CLAUDE ANTHONY REESE JR. 

Phanllacist- in- charge was JOSEPH SHEDRED ALEXANDER fronl date of 

issuance thTOUgh the present. 

Said license was in full force and effect at all tiules relevant to the charges brought 

herein and will expire on August 1, 2004, unless renewed. 

III 

III 
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AR EX (STOCKER) - 3701 STOCKER STREET 


4. On or about June 21, 1977 the Board issued Original Pharmacy Pern1it No. 

PHY 19542 to Ar Ex Phan11acies, Inc., a corporation, to do business as AR EX PHARMACY, 

located at 3701 Stocker Street in the city of Los Angeles (hereinafter "Ar Ex Stocker "). The 

license was canceled on Septen1ber 14, 2000, but was in full force an effect at all tin1es relevant 

to the charges brought herein. 

Corporate officers of record with the Board were ROBERT GANTT, and 

CLYDE HATCH JR., deceased. 

Phan11acist- in- Charge between October 10,1987 and Septen1ber 14, 2000 was 

RICHARD FOSTER. 

5. On or about August 28, 2000 , the Board ofPhannacy issued Original 

Phan11acy Pen11it Number PRY 44567 to Ar Ex Phannacies, Inc., to operate a phanl1acy at the 

smne location, with the san1e nanle. 

Corporate officers of record with the Board for PRY 44567 are ROBERT 

GANTT, and CLAUDE ANTHONY REESE. 

Phan11acist- in- Charge between date of issuance and the present is ROBERT 

GANTT. 

Said license was in full force and effect at all tilnes relevant to the charges herein, 

and will ex.pire on August 1, 2004 unless renewed. 

AR EX (WESTERN) - 2829 S. WESTERN AVENUE 

6. On or about June 4, 1996, the Board ofPhannacy issued Original 

Pharn1acy Pen11it No. PRY 41441 to Ar Ex Phan11acies, Inc., a corporation, to do business as 

AR EX PHARMACY, located at 2829 S. Western Avenue in the City of Los Angeles. Said 

license was in full force and effect at all tinles relevant to the charges brought herein. 

COJ1JOrate officers of record between Septen1ber 27,2000 and the present were 

ROBERT GANTT and CLAUDE ANTHONY REESE. 

Pharn1acist- in- charge of PRY 41441 between SepteInber 27,2000, and the 

present is CLAUDE ANTHONY REESE. 
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7. On or about April 15, 1950, the Board ofPharnlacy issued Original 

Phanl1acist License No. RPH17807to ROBERT A. GANTT (Respondent Gantt). The Original 

Phanllacist License was in full force and effect at all tilnes relevant to the charges herein, until 

January 31, 2002, at which tinle a hold was placed on Respondent's license due to his failure to 

conlply with continuing education requirenlents. The license will expire on January 31,2004, 

unless renewed. 

8. On or about July 25, 1959, the Board ofPharnlacy issued Original 

Phannacist License Ntnnber RPH 21138 to RICI-IARD A. FOSTER (Respondent Foster). The 

Original Phannacist License was in full force and effect at all tilnes relevant to the charges herein 

and will expire on July 31, 2003, unless renewed. 

9. On or about February 6, 1963, the Board ofPhanl1acy issued Original 

Phannacist License No. RPH 22845 to CLAUDE ANTHONY REESE (Respondent Reese). 

The Original Phanllacist License was in full force and effect at all tinles relevant to the charges 

herein, will expire on Decenlber 31, 2003, unless renewed. 

10. On or about October 22, 1949, the Board ofPhannacy issued Original 

Phan11acist License NUlnber RPH 1 7981 to JOSEPH SHEDRED ALEXANDER (Respondent 

Alexander). The Original Phanllacist License was in full force and effect at all tilnes relevant to 

the charges herein and will expire on Septelnber 30, 2004, unless renewed. 

AR EX EMPLOYEE(S) 

11. Original Phanl1acist License Nunlber RPH 37048 issued to STEPHANIE 

A. MARTIN WILLIAMS was suspended, effective August 21,1999, per the Board's order in 

Accusation vs Stephanie A. 1I1artin Williams (AC2300), and subsequently revoked in 2003. 

JURISDICTION 

12. This Accusation is brought before the Board of Phanl1acy (Board), under 

the authority of the following sections of the Business and Professions Code (Code). 

13. Section 4300 of the Code penl1its the Board to take disciplinary action to 

suspend or revoke a license issued by the Board. 
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III 

14. Section 118, subdivision (b), of the Code provides that the expiration of a 

license shall not deprive the Board ofjurisdiction to proceed with a disciplinary action during the 

period within which the license n1ay be renewed, restored, reissued or reinstated. 

15. Section 4005 of the Code states: 

"(a) The board l11ay adopt rules and regulations, not inconsistent with the laws of 

this state, as l11ay be necessary for the protection of the pUblic. Included therein shall be the right 

to adopt rules and regulations as follows: for the proper and 1110re effective enforcen1ent and 

adlnirristration of this chapter; pertaining to the practice of phannacy; relating to the sanitation of 

persons and establislu11ents licensed under this chapter; peliaining to establislullents wherein any 

dnlg or device is conlpounded, prepared, fun1ished, or dispensed; providing for standards of 

n1ininlun1 equipnlent for establishnlents licensed under this chapter; and peIiaining to the sale of 

drugs by or through any Inechanical device. 

"(b) Notwithstanding any provision of this chapter to the contrary, the board l11ay 

adopt regulations pen11itting the dispensing of drugs or devices in en1ergency situations, and 

pernlitting dispensing of drugs or devices pursuant to a prescription of a person licensed to 

prescribe in a state other than Califonlia where the person, if licensed in Califon1ia in the same 

licensure classification would, under Califonlia law, be pemlitted to prescribe drugs or devices 

and where the pha1111acist has first interviewed the patient to detennine the authenticity of the 

prescription. 

"(c) The board n1ay, by rule or regulation, adopt, anlend, or repeal nIles of 

professional conduct appropriate to the establishnlent and Inaintenance of a high standard of 

integrity and dignity in the profession. Every person who holds a license issued by the board 

shall be governed and controlled by the rules of professional conduct adopted by the board. 

"(d) The adoption, mnendnlent, or repeal by the board of these or any other board 

nIles or regulations shall be in accordance with Chapter 3.5 (conl111encing with Section 11340) of 

Part 1 ofDivisioll 3 of Title 2 of the Govenul1ent Code." 
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16. Section 4081 of the Code states: 

"(a) All records ofnlWlufacture and of sale, acquisition, or disposition of 

dangerous drugs or dangerous devices shall be at all tinles during business hours open to 

inspection by authorized officers of the law, and shall be preserved for at least three years froll1 

the date ofnlaking. A CUlTent inventory shall be kept by every nlanufacturer, wholesaler, 

phannacy, veterinary food-aninlal drug retailer, physician, dentist, podiatrist, veterinarian, 

laboratory, clinic, hospital, institution, or establislmlent holding a cUlTently valid and unrevoked 

certificate, license, penllit, registration, or exenlption under Division 2 (conlnlencing with 

Section 1200) of the Health and Safety Code or under Pmi 4 (colmnencing with Section 16000) 

of Division 9 of the Welfare and Institutions Code who nlaintains a stock of dangerous drugs or 

dangerous devices. 

"(b) The owner, officer, and partner of any phan11acy, wholesaler, or veterinary 

food-anin1al drug retailer shall be jointly responsible, with the pharn1acist-in-charge or exenlptee, 

for nlaintaining the records and inventory described in this section. 

"(c) The phanl1acist-in-charge or exenlptee shall not be criIninally responsible for 

acts of the owner, officer, partner, or elnployee that violate this section and of which the 

phamlacist-in-charge or exenlptee had no 1al0wledge, or in which he or she did not knowingly 

participate. " 

17. Section 4059 of the Code states, in pertinent part, that a person lnay not 

funlish any dangerous drug except upon the prescription of a physician, dentist, podiatrist, 

opto111etrist, or veterinarian. A person 111ay not funlish any dangerous device, except upon the 

prescription of a physician, dentist, podiatrist, opto111etrist, or veterinarian. 

18. Section 4076, subdivision (a), of the Code states: 

"A phanllacist shall not dispense any prescription except in a container that nleets 

the requirenlents of state and federal law and is conectly labeled with all of the following: 

"(1) Except where the prescriber or the celiified nurse-nlidwife who functions 

pursuant to a standardized procedure or protocol described in Section 2746.51, the nurse 

practitioner who functions pursuant to a standardized procedure described in Section 2836.1, or 
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protocol, or the physician assistant who functions pursuant to Section 3502.1 orders otherwise, 

either the n1anufacturer's trade nanle,·of the drug or the generic nanle and the nanle of the 

111anufacturer. 

COlllnl0nly used abbreviations nlay be used. Preparations containing two or nl0re 

active ingredients l1lay be identified by the nlanufacturer's trade nanle or the C0l1l1TIOnly used 

nanle or the principal active ingredients. 

"(2) The directions for the use of the drug. 

"(3) The l1mTIe of the patient or patients. 

"( 4) The nmTIe of the prescriber and, if applicable, the certified nurse-l1lidwife 

who functions pursuant to a standardized procedure or protocol described in Section 2746.51, the 

nurse practitioner who functions pursuant to a standardized procedure described in Section 

2836.1, or protocol, or the physician assistant who functions pursuant to Section 3502.1. 

"(5) The date of issue. 

"(6) The nanle and address of the phamlacy, and prescliption nunlber or other 

Ineans of identifying the prescription. 

"(7) The strength of the drug or drugs dispensed. 

"(8) The quantity of the drug or drugs dispensed. 

"(9) The expiration date of the effectiveness of the drug dispensed. 

"(10) The condition for which the drug was prescribed if requested by the patient 

and the condition is indicated on the prescription." 

19. Section 4113 of the Code states: 

"(a) Every phannacy shall designate a phanllacist-in-charge and within 30 days 

thereof, shall notify the Board in writing of the identity and license nUlnber of that pharnlacist 

and the date he or she was designated. 

"(b) The pha1111acist-in-charge shall be responsible for a phanllacy"s conlpliance 

with all state and federal laws and regulations peliaining to the practice of phanTIacy." 

20. Section 4301 of the Code states: 


"The board shall take action against any holder of a license who is guilty of 
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unprofessional conduct or whose license has been procured by fraud or Inisrepresentation or 


issued by ll1istake. Unprofessional conduct shal1 include, but is not lin1ited to, any of the 


following: 


"U) The violation of any of the statutes of this state or of the United States 


regulating controlled substances and dangerous dTugs. 


"(0) Violating or attenlpting to violate, directly or indirectly, or assisting in or 


abetting the violation of or conspiring to violate any provision or tern1 of this chapter or of the 


applicable federal and state laws and regulations governing phannacy, including regulations 

established by the board." 

21. Section 4328 of the Code states: 

"Except as otherwise provided in this chapter, any person who penllits the 

conlpounding or dispensing of prescriptions, or the furnishing of dangerous dnlgs in his or her 

phannacy, except by a phanllacist, is guilty of a misdenleanor." 

22. Section 4329 of the Code states: 

"Any non-phannacist who takes charge of or acts as Inanager of any phanllacy or 

who conlpounds or dispenses a prescription or funlishes dangerous drugs except as otherwise 

provided in this chapter is guilty of a ll1isdell1eanor." 

23. Section 4330 of the Code states: 

"(a) Any person who has obtained a license to conduct a pha1111acy, who fails to 

place in charge of the pha1111acy a phanl1acist, or any person, who by hilnself or herself, or by any 

other person, penl1its the c0111pou11ding or dispensing of prescriptions, or the furnishing of 

dangerous drugs, in his or her phanl1acy, except by a phannacist, or as otherwise provided in this 

chapter, is guilty of a nlisdelnea11or. 

"(b) Any non-phannacist OVlTner who con1111its any act that would subveli or tend 

to subveli the effolis of the pharmacist-in-charge to con1ply with the laws governing the 

operation of the pha1111acy is guilty of a nlisdelneanor." 
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24. Section 4342 states, in pertinent part, that: 

"(a) The board nlay institute any action or actions as maY,be provided by law and 

that, in its discretion, are necessary, to prevent the sale of phanllaceutical preparations and drugs 

that do not confonl1 to the standard and tests as to quality and strength, provided in the latest 

edition of the United States Phanllacopoeia or the National Fornlulary, or that violate any 

provision of the Shenllan Food, Drug and COSlnetic Law." 

25. Health and Safety Code section 11153, subdivision (a) states: 

"A prescription for a controlled substance shall only be issued for a legitilnate 

nledical purpose by an individual practitioner acting in the usual course ofhis or her professional 

practice. The responsibility for the proper prescribing and d~spensing of controlled substances is 

upon the prescribing practitioner, but a conesponding responsibility rests with the phamlacist 

who fills the prescription." 

26. Health and Safety Code, section 11165, states: 

"(a) To assist law enforcenlent and regulatory agencies in their efforts to control 

the diversion and resultant abuse of Schedule II controlled substances, and for statistical analysis, 

education, and research, the DepartInent of Justice shall, contingent upon the availability of 

adequate funds :fr'om the Contingent Fund of the Medical Board of California, the Phanllacy 

Board Contingent Fund, the State Dentistry Fund, and the Osteopathic Medical Board of 

California Contingent Fund, establish the Controlled Substance Utilization Review and 

Evaluation Systenl (CURES) for the electronic 1110nitoring of the prescribing and dispensing of 

Schedule II controlled substances by aU practitioners authorized to prescIibe or dispense these 

controlled substances. CURES shall be inlplenlented as a pilot proj ect, conlnlencing on July 1, 

1997, to be adnlinistered concunently with the existing triplicate prescription process, to 

exanline the conlparative efficiencies between the two systenls. 

"(b) The CURES pilot proj ect shall operate under existing provisions of law to 

safeguard the privacy and confidentiality of patients. Data obtained :fr'onl CURES shall only be 

provided to appropIiate state, local, and federal persons or public agencies for disciplinary, civil, 

or crilninal purposes and to other agencies or entities, as detenllined by the Departnlent of 
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Justice, for the purpose of educating practitioners and others in lieu of disciplinary, civil, or 

crin1inaJ actions. Data nlay be provided to public or private entities, as approved by the 

Depminlent of Justice, for educational, peer review, statistical, or research purposes, provided 

that patient infornlation, including any infoTI11ation that n1ay identify the patient, is not 

c0111pron1ised. Further, data disclosed to any individual or agency as described in this 

subdivision, sha1l not be disclosed, sold, or transferred to any third party. 

"(c) This section sha1l becon1e inoperative on July 1, 2008, and, as of January 1, 

2009, is repealed, unless a later enacted statute, that becomes operative on or before January 1, 

2009, deletes or extends the dates on which it becon1es inoperative and is repealed." 

27. CalifoTIlia Code of Regulatiolls, title 16, section 1715.5 states: 

"The collection of infoTI11ation authorized by Health and Safety Code section 

11165 shall be provided as follows: 

"(a) For each prescription for a Schedule II controlled substance, the dispensing 

phan11acy shall provide the following infonnation: the fullnmne and address of the patient; the 

gender and date ofbilih of the patient; the DBA (Drug Enforcen1ent Adlninistration) nunlber of 

the prescriber; the triplicate prescription nUlnber; the phannacy prescription nun1ber; the 

phamlacy license nunlber; the NDC (National Drug Code) nUlnber and the quantity of the 

contrp1led substance; the ICD-9 (diagnosis code), if available; the date of issue of the 
I 

prescription, the date of dispensing of the prescription, and the state nledical license nUlnber of 

any prescriber using the DEAnunlber of a govenl1nent exen1pt facility. 

"(b) The above infonl1ation shall be provided in the following fonllat: 

"(1) For each phannacy with the capacity to do so, by on-line transnlission at least 

every 30 days and no later than the 18th calendar day of the Inonth following the n10nth in which 

the prescripti on is dispensed. 

"(2) For each pharnlacy which does not have the capacity to transn1it the 

infon11ati on on -line, on a tl11'ee and one-half inch diskette in a AS CII fonnat or one-half inch nine 

track nlagnetic 1600 BPI tape or any other Inediun1 approved by the Board ofPhannacy, which 

diskette, tape or Inediunl shall be nlailed or delivered to a location specified by The Board of 
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Phamlacy, at least every 30 days and no later than the 18th calendar day of the nl0nth fol1owing 

the nlonth in which the prescription is dispensed. 

"(3)For each phar111acy without the capacity to conlp]y with either subsection 

(b)(1) or (2), the original triplicate shall be transnlitted to the Deparinlent of Justice by the end of 

the 1110 nth in which the prescription was filled. 

"For each phanl1acy which SUbll1its hard copy pursuant to this subdivision and 

which phaI111acy averages 1110re than 25 triplicate prescriptions per nl0nth in any six nl0nths, the 

Board of Phar111acy or its designee nlay thereafter require that phanl1acy to conlply with 

subsections (b)(1) and (2). 

"( 4) As to a prescription which is pariially filled or dispensed, the period for 

conlpliance with subsections (1), (2), or (3) shall be nleasured fronl the earlier of the following 

dates and tinles: the prescription is either (1) conlpletely dispensed or (2) can no longer be 

dispensed. 

"( c) Every phamlacy which has nlade a subnlission as required by this section by 

July 18,1998, shall receive a reduction of$ 75 on its next renewal fee for licensure of the 

pharmacy by the board. Every phamlacy shall be in cOlnpliance with this section and Health and 

Safety Code section 11165 bySepte1nber 18, 1998", 

28. California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 171 7, states: 

"(a) No nledication shall be dispensed on prescription except in a new container 

which confornls with standards established in the official cOlnpendia. 

"Notwithstanding the above, a phanl1acist 111ay dispense and refill a prescription 

for non-liquid oral products in a clean nlultiple-drug patient medication package (patient lned 

pak), provided: 

"(1) a patient nled pak is reused only for the sanle patient; 

"(2) no 1110re than a 011e-nl0nth supply is dispensed at one tilne; and 
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"(3) each patient 1ned pak bears an auxiliary label which reads, 'store in a cool, 

dry place.' 

"(b) In addition to the requiren1ents of Section 4036, Business and Professions 

Code, the following inforn1ation shall be nlaintained for each prescription on file and shall be 

readily retrievable: 

"(1) The date dispensed, and the naIne or initials of the dispensing phanllacist. All 

prescriptions filled or refilled by an inten1 phan11acist 111USt also be initialed by the preceptor 

before they are dispensed. 

"(2) The brand nanle of the drug or device; or if a generic drug or device is 

dispensed, the distributor's na111e which appears on the con1nlercial package label; and 

"(3) If a prescription for a drug or device is refilled, a record of each refill, 

quantity dispensed, if different, and the initials or name of the dispensing phanllacist. 

"(4) A new prescription l11Ust be created if there is a change in the dnlg, strength, 

prescriber or directions for use, unless a c0111plete record of all such changes is otherwise 

nlaintained. 

"( c) Pro111ptly upon receipt of an orally transmitted prescription, the phan11acist 

shall reduce it to writing, and initial it, and identify it as an orally transmitted prescription. If the 

prescription is then dispensed by another phaI111acist, the dispensing phaI111acist shall also initial 

the prescription to identify hill1 or herself. 

"All orally transnlitted prescriptions shall be received and transcribed by a 

phaI111acist prior to COll1pounding, filling, dispensing, or furnishing. 

"ChaIi orders as defined in Section 4019 of the Business and Professions Code are 

not subj ect to the provisions of this subsection. 

"(d) A phaI111acist nlay fUI11ish a dnlg or device pursuant to a written or oral order 

fro111 a prescriber licensed in a State other than CalifoI11ia in accordance with Business and 

Professions Code Section 4005. 
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"(e) No licensee shan participate in any aTfangenlent or agreenlent, vvhereby 

prescriptions, or prescriptionnledications, nlay be left at, picked up fronl, accepted by, or 

delivered to any place not licensed as a retail phmlnacy. 

"However, a licensee nlay pick up prescriptions at the office or hOlne of the 

prescriber or pick up or deliver prescriptions or prescription nledications at the office of or a 

residence designated by the patient or at the hospHal, institution, nledical office or clinic at which 

the patient is present. The Board Inay in its sole discretion waive this application of the 

regulation for good cause shown. 

"(f) A phannacist ll1ay transfer a prescription for Schedule III, IV or V controlled 

substances to another phanllacy for refill purposes in accordance with Title 21, Code of Federal 

Regulations, 1306.26. 

"Prescriptions for other dangerous drugs which are not controlled substances Inay 

also be transferred by direct conlnlunication between phanllacists or by the receiving 

pharnlacist's access to prescriptions or electronic files that have been created or verified by a 

phanllacist at the transferring phanllacy. The receiving phannacist shall create a written 

prescription; identifying it as a transfened prescription; and record the date of transfer and the 

original prescription nUlnber. When a prescription transfer is acconlplished via direct access by 

the receiving phanllacist, the receiving phanllacist shall notify the transfening phanllacy of the 

transfer. A phanllacist at the transfen-ing phalll1acy shall then assure that there is a record of the 

prescription as having been transfened, and the date of transfer. Each phannacy shalllnaintain 

inventory accountability and phanl1acist accountability and dispense in accordance with the 

provisions of Section 1716. InfoIll1ation l11aintained by each phanl1acy shall at least include: 

"(1) Identification ofphanl1acist(s) transfening infonl1ation; 

"(2) Na111e and identification code or address of the phannacy fronl which the 

prescription was received or to which the prescription was transfeTfed, as appropriate; 

"(3) OrigiIial date and last dispensing date; 

"( 4) Nunlber of refills and date originally authorized; 

"( 5) NUl11ber of refills rel11aining but not dispensed; 
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"(6) Number of refills transfened. 

"(g) The phai!llacy Blust have written procedures that identify each individual 

pharn1acist responsible for the filling of a prescription and a corresponding entry of infon11ation 

into an autonlated data processing systenl, or a lTIanual record systelTI, and the phan11acist shall 

create in his/her handwriting or through hand-initializing a record of such filling, not later than 

the beginning of the pha1111acy's next operating day. Such record shall be nlaintained for at least 

three years. " 

29. California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1718 states: 

"'Cunent Inventory' as used in Section 4232 of the Business and Professions 

Code shall be considered to include conlplete accountability for all dangerous dnlgs handled by 

every licensee enun1erated in Section 4232." 

30. Code of Federal Regulations, section 1301.7, states: 

"(a) All applicants and registrants shall provide effective controls and 

procedures to guard against theft and diversion of controlled substances. In order to detenlline 

whether a registrant has provided effective controls against diversion, the Adlllinistrator shall use 

the security requiren1ents set forth in sections 1301.72-1301.76 as standards for the physical 

security controls and operating procedures necessary to prevent diversion. Materials and 

construc~ion which will provide a structural equivalent to the physical security controls set fOlih 

in sections 1301.72, 1301.73 and 1301.75 n1ay be used in lieu of the n1aterials and construction 

described in those sections. 

"(b) Substantial cOlllpliance with the standards set forth in sections 1301.72

1301.76111ay be deen1ed sufficient by the Adnlinistrator after evaluation of the overall 

security systell1 and needs of the applicant or registrant. In evaluating the overall security systelll 

of a registrant or applicant, the Adn1inistrator nlay consider any of the following factors as he 

ll1ay deen1 relevant to the need for strict con1pliance with security requiren1ents: 

"(1) The type of activity conducted (e.g., processing of bulk chelllicals, preparing 

dosage f01111S, packaging, labeling, cooperative buying, etc.); 

/ / / 
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"(2) The type and fon11 of controlled substances handled (e.g., bulk liquids or 

dosage units, usable powders' or nOl1usable powders); 

"(3) The quantity of controlled substances handled; 

"(4) The location of the pre111ises and the relationship such location bears on 

"(5) The type of building construction comprising the facility and the general 

characteristics of the building or buildings; 

"(6) The type of vault, safe, and secure enclosures or other storage systen1 (e.g., 

auto111atic storage and retrieval systeln) used; 

"(7) The type of closures on vaults, safes, and secure enclosures; 

"(8) The adequacy of key control 'systelTIS and/or con1bination lock control 

systen1s; 

"(9) The adequacy of electric detection and alanl1 systelns, if any including 

use of supervised transnlittallines and standby power sources; 

"(10) The extent of unsupervised public access to the facility, including the 

presence and characteristics of perilneter fencing, if any; 

"(11) The adequacy of supervision over employees having access to 

n1anufacturing and storage areas; 

"(12) The procedures for handling business guests, visitors, n1aintenance 

perSOlTIlel, and non-eIn~loyee service persomlel; 

"(13) The availability of local police protection or of the registrant's or 

applicant's security personnel, and; 

"(14) The adequacy of the registrant's or applicant's system for n10nitoring the 

receipt, n1anufacture, distribution, and disposition of controlled substances in its operations. 

"(c) When physicaJ security controls becolne inadequate as a result of a 

controlled substance being transferred to a different schedule, or as a result of a non-contro11ed 

substance being listed on any schedule, or as a result of a significant increase in the quantity of 

controlled substances in the possession of the registrant during n01111al business operations, the 

physical security controls shall be expanded and extended accordingly. A registrant Inay adjust 
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physical security controls within the requirenlents set forth in sections 1301.72-1301.76 when the 

need for such controls decreases as fa result of a controlled substance being transfened to a 

different schedule, or a result of a controlled substance being renl0ved frOl11 control, or as a result 

of a significant decrease in the quantity of controlled substances in the possession of the 

registrant during nonllal business operations. 

"(d) Any registrant or applicant desiring to detennine vvhether a proposed 

security systenl substantially conlplies with, or is the structural equivalent of, the requirel11ents 

set fOlih in sections 1301.72-1301.76 l11ay subnlit any plans, blueprints, sketches or other 

l11aterials regarding the proposed security system either to the Special Agent in Charge in the 

region in which the systenl will be used, or to the Conlpliance Division, Drug Enforcenlent 

Adlllinistration, Depminlent of Justice, Washington, D.C. 20537 . 

"(e) Physical security controls of locations registered under the Hanison 

Narcotic Act or the Narcotics Manufacturing Act of 1960 on April 30, 1971, shall be deenled 

to c0111ply substantially with the standards set forth in sections 1301.72, 1301.73 and 1301.75. 

Any new facilities or work or storage areas constnlcted or utilized for controlled substances, 

which facilities or work or storage areas have not been previously approved by the 

Adnlinistration, shall not necessarily be deenled to conlply substantially with the standards set 

fOlih in sections 1301.72, 1301.73 and 1301.75, notwithstanding that such facilities or work or 

storage areas have physical security controls silnilar to those previously approved by the 

Adnlinistration." 

31. Section 125.3 of the Code provides, in pertinent pari, that the Board l11ay 

request the adnlinistrative law judge to direct a licentiate found to have conlnlitted a violation or 

violations of the licensing act to pay a sunl not to exceed the reasonable costs of the investigation 

and enforcelllent of the case. 

32. DRUG CLASSIFICATIONS 

A. Dilaudid 4111g (hydronl0rphone) is a dangerous drug per Business and 

Professions Code section 4022 and a schedule II controlled substance per Health & Safety Code 

section 11055. It is a narcotic analgesic used to treat severe pain. 
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B. Empirin #3 and E1l1pirin #4, a brand llalne for aspirin with Codeine, 30 

n1g. for #3 and 60 11lg. for #4 and aspirin 500 nlg., is a schedule III controlled substance as 

designated by Health & Safety Code section 11 056( e )(2) and is categorized as a dangerous drug 

pursuant to section 4022 of the code. 

C. Phenergan & Codeine (a brand nalne for pron1ethazine with Codeine) is a 

dangerous drug per Business and Professions Code section 4022 and a schedule V controlled 

substance per Health & Safety Code section 11058. It is a narcotic analgesic, used to treat cough. 

D. Seconal (secobarbital) is a dangerous drug per Business and Professions 

Code section 4022 and a schedule II controlled substance per Health & Safety Code section 

11055. It is a barbiturate used to treat inson1nia. 

E. Tussionex (a brand nalne for hydrocodone 10n1g1 chlorpheniran1ine 8lng) 

is a dangerous drug per Business and Professions Code section 4022 and a schedule III controlled 

substance per Health & Safety Code section 11056. It is a combination narcotic product used to 

treat cough. 

F. Tylenol & Codeine 60n1g (Acetaminophen & Codeine, T4) is a dangerous 

drug per Business and Professions Code section 4022 and a schedule III controlled substance per 

Health & Safety Code section 11056. It is a cOlnbination narcotic analgesic, used to treat 

n10derate pain. 

G. Tylenol #3 and Tylenol #4, a brand nalne for Acetan1inophen with 

Codeine, 30 lng. for #3, 60 n1g. for #4 with 5'00 lng. Acetalninophen, is a schedule III controlled 

substance as designated by I-Iealth & Safety Code section 11 056( e )(2) and is categorized as a 

dangerous drug pursuant to section 4022 of the code. 

H. Valiun1 10n1g (a trade nan1e for the chelnical substance diazepan1) is a 

dangerous drug per Business and Professions Code section 4022 and a schedule IV controlled 

substance per I-Iealth & Safety Code section 11057. It is a benzodiazepine used to treat anxiety. 

III 

I I I 

III 
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1. Vicodin ES (a brand nan1e for hydrocodone 7.5111g and acetan1inophen 

750n1g) is a dangerous drug per BUli:iness and Professions Code section 4022 and a schedule III 

controlled substance per Health & Safety Code section 11056. It is a con1bination narcotic 

analgesic, used to treat n10derate pain. 

AR EX FIGUEROA PHARMACY 

FIRST CAUSE OF DISCIPLINE 

(Permitting Non-Licensee to Dispense Prescriptions) 

33. Respondents ROBERT A. GANTT and JOSEPH SHEDRED 

ALEXANDER are subject to discipline under section 4300 for unprofessional conduct as defined 

in section 4301 U) and (0) in conjunction with section 4328, due to their conduct on Novelnber 10, 

1999, in pen11itting Stephanie A. Martin Willian1s to take charge of and dispense prescriptions at 

AR EX Figueroa, despite suspension of her phan11acy license two n10nths earlier (by Order 

effective August 21, 1999). At that tin1e and place, Willian1s was the only phan11acist on duty. 

SECOND CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 


(Permitting Non-Licensee to Dispense Prescriptions) 


34. Respondents AR EX FIGUEROA PHARMACY and ROBERT A. 

GANTT are subject to discipline under section 4300 for unprofessional conduct as defined in 

section 430 lU) and (0) in conjunction with section 4330, due to their conduct" on Nove111ber 10, 

1999, in pen11itting Stephanie A. Matiin Willian1s to take charge of and dispense prescliptions at 

AR EX Figueroa, despite suspension of her phan11acy license two n10nths earlier (by Order 

effective August 21, 1999). At that tin1e and place, Willian1s was the only phan11acist on duty. 

THIRD CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 

(Failure to Implement Electronic Monitoring of Prescriptions) 

35. Respondents AR EX FIGUEROA PI-IARMACY , and ROBERT A. 

GANTT and JOSEPH SI-IEDRED ALEXANDER are subject to discipline under section 4300 for 

unprofessional conduct as defined in section 4301 U) and (0) in conjunction with Health and 

Safety Code section 1165 and 16 California Code of Regulations Section 1715.5, in that at no 

tin1e between Septen1ber 18, 1998 (con1pliance date set out in il11plen1enting regulations) and 
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Septenlber 14, 2000 did Respondent c0111ply with Section 1715.5 requirenlents totransnlit 

electronic data to the BureatfofNarcotic Enforcenlent on a Inonthly basis, regarding dispensing of 

schedule II controlled substances. 

FOURTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 

(Failure to Maintain a Current Inventory) 

36. Respondents AR EX FIGUEROA PHARMACY, and ROBERT A. 

GANTT and JOSEPH SI-IEDRED ALEXANDER are subject to discipline lUlder section 4300 for 

unprofessional conduct as defined in section 4301 (j) and (0) in conjunction with section 4005 and 

16 CalifoTIlia Code of Regulations Section 1718 for failure to nlaintain a "cunent inventory" , in 

that Respondents were unable to account for over 90,000 doses of schedule III controlled 

substances, and over 240 gallons of schedule V substances, dispensed between May 1, 1999 and 

Novenlber 23, 1999, as follows: 

A. Comlnencing on November 10, 1999, a selected drug audit was perfom1ed by 

Board inspectors. The audit period was fron1 May 1, 1999 through NOVell1ber 23, 1999. The audit 

revealed the following inegularities: 

, .' .... 

.... 

c' , 

AMOUNT 
. ORDERED 

····i
, '

··.·
I· 

TOTAL'. 

'.., 

.·
AMOUNT 

, •• 

·DISPENSElf 

i AMOUNT TO 
IBE W.OCT'D. 
I , •. '=-=-~~=' 

! .FOR 

I 

I 

STOCK ON 
HAND 

" 

AMT. 
I OVER 

.... 

. 

AMT. 
.'SHO"ifT 

' .. >:., . 
,..., 

Dilaudid 
4nlg 

2400 2400 6220 -3820 1804 5624 

T4. 59,600 59,600 15,888 43,712 2966 40,746 
Tyl+Cod. 

60mg 

Vicodin 
ES 

54,000 

291 gal. 1 

175 pts.2 

54,000 4978 

291 gal. 41.77 gal. 

175 pts. 66.46 pts. 

49,022 

249.23 gal. 

108.54 pts. 

3219 

4.77 gal. 

7 pts. 

45,803 

244.41 
gal. 

101.54 
pts. 

Prometh + 
Codeine 

Tussiolex 

1 "Gal." gallon( s). 

2"pt." = pint( s). 
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FIFTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 

(FailuI~e to Maintain Records of Drug Transactions) 

37. Respondents AR EX FIGUEROA PHARMACY, and ROBERT A. 

GANTT and JOSEPH SI-IEDRED ALEXANDER are subject to discipline under section 4300 for 

unprofessional conduct as defined in section 4301(j) and (0) in conjunction with section 4081 in 

that between May 1, 1999 and Noven1ber 23, 1999, though AR EX Figueroa dispensed over 

90,000 doses of schedule III controlled substances, and over 240 gallons of schedule V substances 

- all records of sale, acquisition and disposition of these drugs were not Inaintained for three years, 

as required by section 4081. 

AR EX - STOCKER 

SIXTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 

(Failure to Mainta"in Records of Controlled Substances) 

38. Respondents AR EX PHARMACY STOCKER, and ROBERT A. GANTT 

and JOSEPH SHEDRED ALEXANDER are subject to discipline under section 4300 for 

unprofessional conduct as defined in section 4301 (j) and (0) in cOl~unction with section 4081 In 

that between July 6, 2999, and June 21,1999, though AR EX Figueroa dispensed approxinlately 

350,000 doses of schedule III and schedule IV contro11ed substances, and over 600 gallons of 

schedule V substances - a11 records Qf sale, acquisition and disposition of these drugs were 110t 

ll1aintained andlor not-open to inspection forthree years, as required by section 4081, as follows: 

A. COn1l11encing on Novenlber 10, 1999, a selected drug audit was perfofll1ed by 

Board inspectors. The audit period was froll1 "May 1, 1999 tlll'ough Novenlber 10, 1999. The audit 

revealed that the following acquisition invoices a11 for contro11ed substances were not retained or 

could not be produced by Respondents: 

I 
, ]})aie

" , 

. ,. , 

Invo'iceNo.
, ......... 

July 6, 1999 227127 

July 16, 1999 228406 

August 2, 1999 230214 

Novenlber 2, 1999 241230 
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u

 

 

 

 

n

, 

" 

Date 
" 

" 

Novenlber 4; 1999 

:1, 

" ~ " ," c, 

Inyoice,No. 

241583 

" 

Novenlber 24, 1999 243832 

May 28,1999 652300 

June 28, 1999 667746 

N ovenlber 2, 1999 1410334 

May 5,1999 424941 

May 1,1999 318204 

May 3,1999 3796941 

May 28,1999 3819355 

June 8, 1999 3826734 

June14, 1999 3831401 

June 21, 1999 3837236 

(Exh.77A.) 

SEVENTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 

(Failure to Maintain a Current Inventory) 

39. Respondents AR EX PHARMACY STOCKER, and ROBERT A. GANTT 

and JOSEPH SHEDREDALEXANDER are subject to discipline under section 4300 for 

p~~fessional conduct as defined in section 4301 U) and (0) in conjunction with section 4005 and 

16 California Code of Regulations ,section 1718 for failure to nlaintain a "CUlTent inventory", in 

that Respondents were unable to account for approximately 350,000 doses of schedule III and 

schedule IV controlled substances, and over 600 gallons of schedule V substances dispensed 

between May 1, 1999 and Novenlber 10, 1999 as follows: 

A. Conullencing on Novenlber 10, 1999, a selected drug audit was perfonned by 

Board inspectors. The audit perjod was fron1 May 1, 1999 tlu'ough Novelnber 10, 1999. The audit 

revealed the following ilTegularities: 
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I; 

DRllG 

Dilaudid 

1 

ANIOllNT 

ORDERED 

, 

22500 

AMOUNT 

, 
DISPENSED 

18395 

I···· 

., 
AMOllNTTO 

. 

BE ACCNT'D 

FOR 

4105 

STOCK' 

ON 

HAND 

841 

AMOllNT 

OVER 
1 

···1.·· 

I, 

. 

AMOUNT 

SHORT 

3264 

4 mg. 

Seconal 5300 7030 -1730 500 2230 

100 mg. 

Vicodin 489,000 217160 271848 6768 265,080 

ES 

T4 

Prometh + 

204,00 

1230.6 gal. 

271060 

587.72 gal. 

-67050 

642.88 gal. 

4667 

7 pts. 

71727 

642.01 gal. 

Codeine .87 gal. 

Tussionex 

Valium 

32 pts. 

70,500 

19.80 pts. 

56,740 

12.2 pts. 

13760 

7 pts. 

8281 

5.2 pts. 

5479 

10 mg. 

EIGHTH CAUSE OF DISCIPLINE 

(Incorrect or Irregular Prescription Labels) 

40. Respondents AR EX PHARMACY STOCKER and RICHARD A. 

FOSTER are subject to discipline under section 4300 for unprofessional conduct as defined in 

section 4301U) and (0) in conjunction with section 4076(a) and 4059 in that during a11 audit 

conlnlencing in Novenlber, 1999, Board inspectors reviewing prescription labels prepared by 

enlployees of Respondent Pharnlacy, found errors, incorrect infornlation or other ilTegu1arities in 

at least 652 of the 2300 phanl1acy labels inspected as follows: 

A. Inspectors found 44 prescription doclunents that \vere b1anl(, indicating 

distribution of drugs had been nlade without a prescription. (violation of section 4059) 

B. Inspectors found the following additional irregularities : 

(i) 8 incorrect patient first or last nanle on the prescription label. (Violation of 

section 4076(a)(3).) 
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(ii) 15 incorrect dnlg or drug strength on the prescription label. (Incorrect drug 

is a violation of Business and Professions Code section 4076(a)(I) and incon-ect drug strength is a 

violation of section 4076(a)(7).) 

(iii) 536 incorrect directions on prescription label. (Violation of 4076(a)(2).) 

(iv) 47 incorrect physician first or last na111e on prescription label. (Violation of 

section 4076(a)(4).) 

(v) 2 prescription docnnlents with no na111e of the n1edication on the 

prescription. (Violation of section 4040(a)(l )(B).) 

NINTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 

(Responsibility of Pharmacist) 

41. Respondents AR EX PHARMACY STOCKER, and ROBERT A. GANTT 

are subject to disciplinary action for unprofessional conduct under sections 4300 and 4301(j) and 

(0) of the Code, in conjunction with violating Health and Safety Code section 11153 in that 

Respondents did not aSSUll1e their co-responsibility in assuring prescr~ptions for controlled 

substances were issued for legitimate l11edical purposes, as fo~lows: 

A. Between Decenlber 1 and 6, 2000, in accord with their routine and 

custoll1ary practice, Respondents filled and dispensed approxinlately 259 prescriptions bundled in 

groups and in sequence fr0111 the sanle doctor. Approxill1ately 126 of the 259 prescriptions were 

for controlled substances: Vicodin ES, Phenergan with Codeine, Enlpirin #3 and Enlpirin #4, 

Tylenol #3 and Tylenol #4, and Valiun] 10nlg. The drugs thus dispensed were then delivered to 

the person who subnlitted the bundled prescriptions. 

B. When interviewed about this practice in July, 2001, Respondent Gantt 

adnlitted that the pharnlacy had not obtained consent fronl patients to this arrangenlent, and had· 

nlade no eff01i to verify that the person to \VhOn1 the drugs \vere dispensed was an authorized 

representative of said patients or that the patients actually received the dlUgS dispensed. 
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. TENTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 

(Outdated Stock of Shelves) 

42. Respondent AR EX PHARMACY STOCKER and ROBERT GANTT are 

subject to disciplinary action for unprofessional conduct under sections 4300 and 4301(j) and (0) 

of the Code for violating section 4342 as defined in Title 16, Califo111ia Code of Regulations, 

section 1718.1, in that during a Board investigation in July, 2001, investigators found outdated 

and nlislabeled prescription containers on the shelves of Respondent Pharmacy as follows: 

A. Repackaged Aventyl or Pmnelor in Rx 152809 container, one bottle, 

expiration date of 02/29/2000; 

B. Rx Container #428369, Capoten 100nlg., one bottle; expiration date of 

10/1998; 

C. Rx Container #429197, Actigall 300nlg., one bottle; expiration date of 

10/1999; 

D. Rx Container #453690, Trazodone 150Ing., one bottle; no expiration date; 

E. Labeled Nifet 20Ing., one bottle, no manufacturer's nmne, no lot nU111ber, 

no expiration date; 

F. Labeled Navane, one bottle, 110 other labeling; 

G. Rx Container 440765, Trazodone 100nlg., one bottle; expiration date of 

10/1999. 

AR EX PHARMACY - 2829 S. WESTERN AVENUE 

ELEVENTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 


(Failure to Implement Electronic Monitoring of Prescriptions) 


43. Respondents AR EX PHARMACY WESTERN, and CLAUDE 

ANTHONY REESE are subject to discipline under section 4300 for unprofessional conduct as 

defined in section 4301 (j) and (0) in conjunction with I-Iealth and Safety Code section 1165 as it 

relates to 16 California Code of Regulations Section 1715.5, in that at no tilne between Septelnber 

18, 1998 (conlpliance date set out in ilnpielnenting statute) and Septenlber 14,2000, did 

Respondent conlply with Section 1715.5 requirenlents to translnit electronic data to the Bureau of 
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Narcotic Enforcenlent on a 1110nthly basis, regarding dispensing of schedule II controlled 

substances. 

TWELFTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 

(Failure to Maintain Records of Controlled Substances) 

44. Respondents AR EX PHARMACY WESTERN, and CLAUDE 

ANTHONY REESE are subject to discipline under section 4300 for unprofessional conduct as 

defined in section 4301U) and (0) in conjunction with section 4081 in that between approxilnately 

May and N·ovelnber 1999, though AR EX Westenl dispensed approxilnately 12,000 doses of 

Tylenol and Codeine 60nlg, records of these transactions were not Inaintained and/or not open to 

inspection for three years, as required by section 4081. 

THIRTEENTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 

(Failure to Maintain Inventory of Controlled Substances) 

45. Respondents AR EX PHARMACY WESTERN and CLAUDE 
I 

ANTHONY REESE are subject to discipline under section 4300 for unprofessional conduct as 

defined in section 4301 (j) and (0) in conjunction with section 4005 and 16 Califo111ia Code of 

Regulations Section 1 718 for failure to nlaintain a cunent inventory, in that Respondents have no 

inventory records to account for approxilnately 12,000 doses of Tylenol and Codeine 60 lng 

dispensed between May and Novelnber 1999. 

FOURTEENTH CAUSE OF DISCIPLINE 

(Incorrect or Irregular Prescription Labels) 

46. Respondents AR EX PHARMACY WESTERN and CLAUDE 

ANTI-IONY REESE are subject to discipline under section 4300 for unprofessional conduct as 

defined in section 4301(j) and (0) in conjunction with section 4076(a)(3), (a)(I),(a)(2), (a)(8)and 

(a)(4) and 16 California Code of Regulations sections 1717 and 1717(b)(1), in that during an audit 

conullencing in Novenlber, 1999, Board inspectors reviewing prescription labels prepared by 

enlployees of Respondent Phanllacy, found enors, incorrect infoffilation or other inegularities in 

at least 1417 of the 1527 pha1111acy labels inspected as follows: 
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A. I1lspectors found 131 instances in which prescriptions had been filled, but 

in which the phanllacist failed to i111tial the receipt or dispensing of the prescription. (violation of 

16 California Code of Regulations Section 1717 and 1717(b)(1) 

B. Inspectors found the following additional irregularities : 

(i) 12 patient first or last nanles were incorrect on the prescription 


label. (Violation of section 4076(a)(3).) 


(ii) 581 instances in which the directions on the prescription do not 


nlatch the directions on the prescription label. (Violation of section 4076(a)(2).) 


(iii) 61 instances where the physician last naIne and 52 instances where 

the physician first nanle does not nlatch the prescription label. (Violation of section 4076(a)(4).) 

(iv) 5 instances where the quantity dispensed does not Inatch the 


quantity ordered by the physician. (Violation of section 4076(a)(8).) 


(v) 13 instances where the nanle on the label of the prescription did not 

Inatch the nanle of the Inedication ordered by the physician. (Violation of section 4071(a)(4).) 


OTHER MATTERS 


48. Business and Professions Code section 4307(a) provides, in pertinent part, 

that any person whose license has been revoked or is under suspension, or who has failed to renew 

. his or her licensewhile it was under suspension, or who has been a Inanager, adnlinistrator, 

owner, Inenlber, officer, director, associate, or paIiner and while acting as the Inanager, 

adnlinistrator, owner, nlenlber, officer, director, associate, or partner had knowledge of or 

k:nowingly participated in any conduct for which the license was denied, revoked, suspended, or 

placed on probation, shall be prohibited froln serving as a nlanager, adnlinistrator, owner, 

nlenlber, officer, director, associate, or paIiner of a license. 

49. AR EX PHARMACIES INC., the license holder doing business as AR EX 

FIGUEROA PHARMACY, AR EX PI-IARMACY MANCHESTER, AR EX PHARMACY 

WESTERN and AR EX PI-IARMACY STOCKER, has been previously disciplined. On or about 

July 23, 1987, in a prior disciplinary action entitled In the Matter oft1le Accusation Against Ar Ex 
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PhmTI1acies, Inc. before the Board ofPharn1acy, in Case No. 1313, the license was placed on 

probation, with tenns and conditions, for a period of three (3) years for unprofessional conduct. 

50. Respondent CLAUDE ANTHONY REESE was disciplined in two prior 

ll1atters: 1) Accusation Case No. 1447 and 2) Accusation Against Case NO.1514. 

51. Respondent ROBERT GANTT was previously disciplined in the Matter of 

the Accusation Against Ar Ex Pharnlacies, Inc. before the Board ofPhannacy, in Case No. 1313. 

52. Respondent RICHARD FOSTER was previously disciplined in the Matter 

of the Accusation Case No. 1222. 

PRAYER 

WI-IEREFORE, Conlplainant requests that a hearing be he1d on the Inatters herein 

alleged, and that following the hearing, the Board of Phan11acy issue a decision: 

1. Revoking or suspending Original Pharmacy Pennit No. PHY 44567, issued 

to Ar Ex Phanllacies, Inc., to do business as Ar Ex Phannacies, Inc., 

2. Revoking or suspending Original Pharmacist License No. RPH 17807, 

issued to Robeli A. Gantt; 

3. Revoking or suspending Original Phanl1acist License No. RPH 21138, 

issued to Richard A. Foster; 

4. J)rd{3ril1g AT :E:;}( Pl1a.rn1acies, IIlc., RobertQal1tt C111clRichard A. Foster to 

pay the Board ofPhan11acy the reasonable costs of the investigation and enforcelnent of this case, 

pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 125.3; 

5. Taking such other and fUliher action as deen1ed neceSSaly and proper. 

DATED: ~ jd.3 JOY: 

PATRICIA F. I-IARRIS 
Executive Officer 
Board ofPhannacy 
Departlnent ofConsun1er Affairs 
State of Califonlia 
Con1plainant 
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BILL LOCK.YER, Attonley General 
of the State ofCalifonua 

SUSAN MELTON WILSON, State BarNo. 106092 
Deputy Attorney General 

Califo111ia Departtnent of Justice 
300 So. Spring Street, Suite 1702 
Los Angeles, CA 90013 
Telephone: (213) 897-4942 
Facsinlile: (213) 897-2804 

Attorneys for Conlplainant 

BEFORE THE 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

In the Matter of the Accusation Against: 

AREX PHARMACY-FIGUEROA, 

AR EX PHARMACIES, INC., 

AREX PHARMACY MANCHESTER, 

AR EX PHARMACY, 

ROBERT A. GANTT, 

RICHARD A. FOSTER, 

CLAUDE ANTHONY REESE; 

and 

JOSEPI-ISHEDRED ALEXANDER, 

Respondents. 

Case No. 2516 

STATEMENT TO RESPONDENT 

[Gov. Code §§ 11503, 11505, subd. (b)] 

TO RESPONDENTS: 

Enclosed is a copy of the Accusation that has been filed with the Board of 

Phanl1acy of the Depminlent of Consuluer Affairs (Board), and which is hereby served on you. 

Unless a written request for a hearing signed by you or on your behalf is delivered 

or nlailed to the Board, represented by Deputy Attorney General Susan Melton Wilson, within 
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fifteen (15) days after a copy of the Accusation was personally served on you or ll1ailed to you, 

you will be deen1ed to have waived your right toa hearing in tIns n1atter and the Board n1ay 

proceed upon the Accusation without a hearing and Inay take action thereon as provided by law. 

. The request for hearing Inay be n1ade by delivering or n1ailing one of the enclosed 

for111s entitled "Notice of Defense," or by delivering or n1ailing a Notice of Defense as provided 

in section 11506 of the Governn1ent Code, to 

Susan Melton Wilson 

Deputy Attorney General 

Ronald Reagan Building 

300 SOUtll Spring Street, Suite 1702 

Los Angeles, CA 90013. . 


OYou n1ay, but need not, be represented by counsel at any or all stages of these 

proceedings. 

The enclosed Notice ofDefense, if signed and filed with the Board, shall be 

deen1ed a specific denial of all pmis of the Accusation, but you will not be pem1itted to raise any 

objection to the fonn of the Accusation unless you file a fluiher Notice of Defense as provided in 

section 11506 of the Government Code within fifteen (15) days after service of the Accusation 

on you. 

If you file any Notice of Defense within the tilne pennitted, a hearing will be held 

on the charges n1ade in the Accusation. 

TheheaIing ll1ay be postponed for good cause. Ifyou have good cause, you are 

obliged to notify the Office of Adn1inistrative Hearings, 320 West Foulih Street, Suite 630, Los 

Angeles, Califonlia 90013, within ten (10) working days after you discover the good cause. 

Failure to notify the Office of Adlninistrative I-Iearings within ten (10) days will deprive you of a 

postponenlent. 

Copies of sections 11507.5, 11507.6, and 11507.7 of the Governnlent Code are 

enclosed. 
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If you desire the nan1es and addresses ofwitnesses or an opporhuuty to inspect 

and copy the iten1s Inentioned in section 11507.6 of the GovenUl1ent Code in the possession, 

custody or control of the Board you Inay send a Request for Discovery to the above designated 

Deputy AttOTI1ey General. 

NOTICE REGARDING STIPULATED SETTLEMENTS 

It n1ay be possible to avoid the tin1e, expense and uncertainties involved in an 

adll1inistrative heming by disposing of this Inatter through a stipulated settlenlent. A stipulated 

settlen1ent is a binding written agreenlent between you and the government regarding the n1atters 

charged and the discipline to be ilnposed. Such 'a stipulation would have to be approved by the 

Board ofPharn1acy but, once approved, it would be incorporated into a final order. 

Any stipulation n1ust be consistent with the Board's established disciplinary 

guidelines; however, alllnatters in mitigation or aggravation will be considered. A copy of the 

Board's Disciplinm"y Guidelines will be provided to you on your written request to the state 

agency bringing this action. 

If you are interested in pursuing this alternative to a formal adlninistrative hearing, 

or if you have any questions, you or your attorney should contact Deputy. Attorney General Susan 

Melton Wilson at the earliest opportunity. 

****** 
SMW:jab 
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BEFORE THE 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 


DEPARTMENT OF-CONSUMER. AFFAIRS 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 


In the Matter of the Accusation Against: 

AREX PHARMACY-FIGUEROA, 

AR EX PHARMACIES, INC., 

AREX PHARMACY MANCI-lESTER, 

AR EX PHARMACY, 

ROBERT A. GANTT, 

RICHARD A. FOSTER, 

CLAUDE ANTHONY REESE, 


and 
JOSEPH SI-lEDRED ALEXANDER, 

Respondents. 

Case No. 2516 

NOTICE OF DEFENSE 

[Gov. Code §§ 11505 and 11506] 

I, the undersigned Respondent in the above-entitled proceeding, hereby ack:nowledge receipt of a 
copy of the Accusation; Statenlent to Respondent; Govenunent Code sections 11507.5, 11507.6 and 
11507.7, COlnplainant's Request for Discovery; and two copies of a Notice of Defense. 

I hereby request a hearing to pennit Ine to present nly defense to the charges contained in the 
Accusation. 

DATED: 
~-----------------

Respondent's Nalne 


Respondent's Signature 


Respondent's Mailing Address 

City, State and Zip Code 

Respondent's Telephone Nunlber 

Check appropriate box: 

o 	 I aln represented by counsel, whose nanle, address and telephone nunlber appear below: 

Counsel's N anle 

Counsel's Mailing Address 

City, State and Zip Code 

Counsel's Telephone NUlnber 

1 
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Notice of Defense. wpt 8/30101 

I mTI not now represented by counsel. If and when counsel is retained, inIDlediate notification of 
the attorney's nmTIe, address and telephone nUlTIber will be filed with the Office of 
Adnlinistrative Hearing and a copy sent to· counsel for Conlplainant so that counsel will be on 
record to receive legal notices, pleadings and other papers. 

The agency taking the action described in the Accusation nlay have fonnulated guidelines to 
assist the adnlinistrative law judge in reaching an appropriate penalty. You Inay obtain a copy of the 
guidelines by requesting thenl fronl the agency in writing. 
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BEFORE THE 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 


DEPARTMENTOF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 


In the Matter of the Accusation Against: 


AREX PHARMACY-FIGUEROA, 

AR EX PHARMACIES, INC., 

AREX PHARMACY MANCHESTER, 

AR EX PHARMACY, 

ROBERT A. GANTT, 

RICHARD A. FOSTER, 

CLAUDE ANTHONY REESE, 


and 
JOSEPH SHED RED ALEXANDER, 

Respondents. 

Case No. 2516 

NOTICE OF DEFENSE 

[Gov. Code §§ 11505 and 11506J 

I, the undersigned Respondent in the above-entitled proceeding, hereby acknowledge receipt of a 
copy of the Accusation; StateIllent to Respondent; Govenllllent Code sections 11507.5, 11507.6 and 
11507.7, Conlplainant!s Request for Discovery; and two copies of a Notice of Defense. 

I hereby request a hearing to penllit Ine to present Illy defense to the charges contained in the 
Accusation. 

DATED: __~_____________ 


Respondent's Nanle 


Respondent's Signature 

Respondent's Mailing Address 

City, State and Zip Code 

Respondent's Telephone Nunlber 

Check appropriate box: 

o 	 Ianl represented by counsel, whose nanle, address and telephone nlunber appear below: 

Counsel's N anle 

Counsel's Mailing Address 

City, State and Zip Code 

Counsel's Telephone Nunlber 
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Notice of Defense. wpt 8/30/01 

o I anl110t now represented by counsel. If and when counsel is retained, inul1ediate notification of 
the attoll1ey's naJ.l1e, address and telephone nunlber will be filed with the Office of 
Adnlil1istrative Hearing and a copy sent tocoul1sel for Conlplainant so that counsel will be on 
record to receive legal notices, pleadings and other papers. 

The agency taking the actiondescribed in the Accusation 111ay have fOll11ulated guidelines to 
assist the adnlinistrative law judge in reaching an appropriate penalty. You Inay obtain a copy of the 
guidelines by requesting thel11 fr0111 the agency in writing. 
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BILL LOCI(YER, Attonley General 
of the State of Califonria 

SUSAN MELTON WILSON, State Bar No. 106092 
Deputy AttoDley General 

California Departnient of Justioe 
300 So. Spring Stre'et, Suite 1702 
Los Angeles, CA 90013 
Telephone: (213) 897-4942 
,Facsinlile: (213) 897-2804 

Attorneys for Conlplainant 

BEFORE THE 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 


DEP ARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 


n the Matter of the Aoousation Against: 

AREXPHARMACY-FIGUEROA, 


AR EX PHARMACIES, INC., 


AREX PHARMACY MANCHESTER, 


AR EX PHARMACY, 


ROBERT A. GANTT, 


RICHARD A. FOSTER, 


CLAUDE ANTHONY REESE, 


and 

JOSEPH. SHED RED ALEXANDER; 

Respondents. 

'Case No. 2516 

REQUEST FOR DISCOVERY 

[Gov. Code § 11507.6J 

TO RESPONDENTS: 


Under seotion 11507.6 of the Govenlll1ent Code of the State ofCalifonlia, pmiies 

to an adnunistrative hearing, including the Conlplainant, are entitled to oeliain infonllation 

cOl1oenung the opposing party's case. A copy of the provisions of section 11507.6 of the 

Govenlll1ent Code conoenung suoh rights is included anl0ng the papers served. 

http:11507.6J
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PURSUANT TO SECTION 11507.6 OF THE GOVERNMENT CODE, YOU 

ARE HEREBY REQUESTED TO: 

1. Provide th~ nallleS and addresses ofwitnesses to the extent lalown to the 

Respondent, including, but not linlited to, those intended to be called to testify at the hearing, and 

2. Provide an opportunity for the COlnplainallt to inspect and nlake a copy of any of 

the following in the possession or custody or under control of the Respondent: 

a. A statelnent of a person, other than the Respondent, nanled in the initial 

adnlinistrative pleading, or in any additional pleading, when it is clainled that the act or 

olnission of the Respondent as to this person is the basis for the adnlinistrative 

proceeding; 

b. A statelnent pertaining to the subj ect Inatter of the proceeding nlade by any 

party to another paliy or persons; 

c. Statelnents of witnesses then proposed to be called by the Respondent and 

of other persons having personallal0wledge of the acts, ornissions or events which are the 

basis for the proceeding, not included in (a) or (b) above; 

d. All writings, including but not lil1lited to reports of Inental, physical and 

blood exanlinations and things which the Respondent now proposes to offer in evidence; 

e. Any other ,writing or thing which is relevant and which would be 

adnlissible in evidence; including butnot limited to,anypatient or hospital records 

pv1iaining to the persons nalned in the pleading; 

f. Investigative repolis nlade by or on behalf of the Respondent pertaining to 

the subject nlatter of the proceeding, to the extent that these repolis (1) contain the nalnes 

and addresses ofwitnesses or of persons having personal knowledge of the acts, 

OlIDssions or events which are the basis for the proceeding, or (2) reflect Inatters 

perceived by the investigator in the course of his or her investigation, or (3) contain or 

include by attaclmlent any statenlent or writing described in (a) to ( e), inclusive, or 

sUlllillary thereof. 
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For the purpose of this Request for Discovery, "statelnents" include written 

statenlents by the person, signed, or otherwise authenticated by him or her, stenographic, 

nlechanical, electrical or other recordings, or transcripts thereof, of oral statements by the person, 

and written reports or Slul1111aries of these oral statenlents. 

YOU ARE HEREBY FURTHER NOTIFIED that nothing in this Request for 

Discovery should be deenled to authorize the inspection or copying of any writing or thing which 

is privileged fi'onl disclosure by law or otherwise nlade confidential or protected as attorney's 

work product. 

Your response to this Request for Discovery should be directed to the undersigned 

att0111ey for the COlnplainant at the address on the first page of this Request for Discovery within 

30 days after service of the Accusation. 

Failure without substantial justification to cOlnply with this Request for Discovery 

nlay subject the Respondent to sanctions pursuant to sections 11507.7 and 11455.10 to 11455.30 

of the GOVel111nent Code. 

DATED: 1- r {J{ 

BILL LOCK.YER, Attorney General 
of the State of Califonua 

Deputy Attorney General 

Attorneys for COlnplainant 

SMW:jab 
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COPY OF GOVERNMENT CODE SECTIONS 11507.5, 11507.6 AND 11507.7 

PROVIDED PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTIONS 11504 AND 11505 


SECTION 11507.5: Exclusivity of discovery provisions 

The provisions of Section 11507.6 provide the exclusive right to and 11lethod of discovery as to 
any proceeding governed by this chapter. 

SECTION 11507.6: Request for discovery 

After initiation of a proceeding in which a respondent or other pmiy is entitled to a hearing on 
the Inerits, a party, upon written request l11ade to another party, prior to the hearing, and within 30 
days after service by the agency of the initial pleading or witllin 15 days after the service of an 
additiol1al pleading, is entitled to (1) obtain the nanles and addresses of witnesses to the extent 
lrnown to the other pmiy, including, but not lUllited to, those intended to be called to testify at the 
hearing, and (2) inspect and nlake a copy of any of the following in the possession or custody or 
under the control ofthe other party: 

(a) A statenlent of a person, other than the respondent, nm11ed in the initial adnlinistrative 
pleading, or in any additional pleading, when it is clail11ed that the act or ol11ission of the 
respondent as to this person is the basis for the adl11inistrative proceeding; 

(b) A statement peliaining to the subj ect nlatter of the proceeding made by any pmiy to 
another party or person; 

(c) State111ents of witnesses then proposed to be called by the pmiy and of other persons 
having personallrnowledge of the acts, O111issions or events which are the basis for the 
proceeding,not included in (a) or (b) above; 

(d) All writings, including, but not liluited to, reports of nlental, physical and blood 
ex~nninationsand things which the party then proposes to offer in evidence; 

-(6) A11yotherwl~itillgor thingwhichish:~levant and whicllw'ouldbeadnlissible in 
evidence; 

(f) Investigative reports nlade by or on behalf of the agency or other party peliaining to the 
subj ect nlatter of the proceeding, to the extent that these repolis (1) contain the rianles and 
addresses ofwitness'es or ofpersons having personallalowledge of the acts, 01uission8 or events 
which are the basis for the proceeding, or (2) reflect nlatters perceived by the investigator in the 
course of his or her investigation, or (3) contain or include by attac1ullent any statenlent or 
writing described in (a) to ( e), ulclusive, or sununary thereof. 

For the pllrpose of this section, "statel11ents" include written statelllents by the person signed 
or otherwiseauthenticatedbyhinl or her, stenographic, Inechmlical, electrical or othel' 
recordings, or transcripts thereof, of oral statell1ents by the person, and written reports or 
sun1l11aries of these oral statell1ents. 

Nothing in this section shall authorize the inspection or copying of any writing or thing 
which is privileged frOlU disClosure by law or otherwise nlade confidential or protected as the 
attOTIley's work product. 

1 




SECTION 11507.7: Petition to compel discovery; Order; Sanctions 

(a) Any party clainling the paliy's request for discovery pursuant to Section 11507.6 has not 
been cOlllplied with Inay serve and file with the adnlinistrative law judge a l11otion to conlpel 
discovery, nanling as respondent the party refusing or fail~ng to conlply with Section 11507.6. 
The nl0tion shall state facts showing the respondent patiy failed or refused to conlply with 
Section 11507.6, a descriptionof the nlatters sought to be discov~red, the reason or reasons why 
the nlatter is discoverable under that section, that a reasonable and good faith attenlpt to contact 
the respondent for an infonnal resolution of the issue has been nlade, and the ground or grounds 
of respondent's refusal so far as known to the nl0ving party. 

(b) The nl0tion shall be served upon respondent paliy and filed within 15 days after the 
respondent patiy first evidenced failure or refusal to conlply with Section 11507.6 or within 30 
days after request was nlade and the party has failed to reply to the request, or within another 
tinle providedhy stipulation, whichever period is longer. 

(c) The hearing on the nlotion to cOl11pel discovery shall be held within 15 days after the 
nlotion is ll1ade, or a later tinle that the adl11inistrative law judge luay on the judge's own nl0tion 
for good cause detell11ine. The respondent paliy shall have the right to serve and file a written 
answer or other response to the 1110tion before or at the time of the hearing. 

(d) Where the lnatter sought to be discovered is under the custody or control of the 
respondent paliy and the respondent paliy asselis that the nlatter is not a discoverable matter 
under the provisions of Section 11507.6, or is privileged against disclosure lUlder those 
provisions, the adlninistrative law judge nlay order lodged with it nlatters provided in 
subdivision (b) of Section 915 of the Evidence Code and exanline the nlatters in accordance with 
its provisions. 

(e) The adl11inistrative law judge shall decide the case on the matters eXalllined in Calnera, 
the papers filed by the patiies, and such oral argunlent and additional evidence as the 
adnlinistrative law' judge nlay allow. 

(f}Unless othe1wise stipulated by thepaliies, the adnlinistrativelaw judge shall no later 
than 1"5 days after the hearingn1ake its order denying oi' gra~lting the nl0tion.Theordershall be 
in writing setting fOlih the nlatters the nl0ving pady is entitled to discover under Section 
11507.6. A copy of the order shall forthwith be served by nlail by the administrative law judge 
upon the paliies. Where the order grants the nlotion in whole or in pali, the order shall not 
beconle effective until 1 0 days after the date the order is served. Where the order denies relief to 
the 1110ving party, the order shall be effective 011 the date it is served. 

**'';:***'J:*'i:** 
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DECLARATION OF SERVICE BY CERTIFIED MAIL AND FIRST CLASS MAIL 
(Separate Mailings) 

In the Matter of the Accusation Against: 

AR EX FIGUEROA PHARMACY, AR EX PHARMACIES, INC., AREX PHARMACY 

MANCHESTER, AR EX PHARMACY, ROBERT A. GANTT, RICHARD A. FOSTER~ 


CLAUDE ANTHONY REESE, and JOSEPlI SI-IEDRED ALEXANDER 

Board ofPhannacy Case No. 2516 


I declare: 


I anl elnployed in the Office of the Attonley General, which is the office of a nlenlber of the 

California State Bar at which nlelnber' s direction this service is nlade. I anl 18 years of age or 

older and 110t a paIiy to this nlatter. I anl fanliliar with the business practice at the Office of the 

Attorney General for collection and processing of conespondence for nlailing with the United 

States Postal Service. In accordance with that practice, conespondence placed in the internal 

nlail collection systenl at the Office of the Attorney General is deposited with the United States 

Postal Service that SaI11e day in the ordinary course ofbusiness. 


On Septeluber 9, 2004, I served the attached Accusation, Statement to Respondent, Notice of 

Defense (2 copies), Request for Discovery and Discovery Statutes by placing a true copy 

thereof enclosed in a sealed envelope as certified mail with postage thereon fully prepaid and 

return receipt requested, and another true copy of the Accusation, Statement to Respondent, 

Notice of Defense (2 copies), Req,uest for Discovery and Discovery Statutes was enclosed in a 

second sealed envelope as first class 111ail with postage thereon fully prepaid, in the intenlal nlail 

collection systel11 at the Office of the Attorney General at 300 So. Spring St., Los Angeles, CA 

90013, addressed as follows: 


AREX_FIGUER.OA PHARMACY 
600 West Manchester Blvd. 
Los Angeles, CA 90044 

Certified Mail No.: 
7001 03600003 6702 5156 

AREX PI-IARMACY MANCHESTER 
600 West Manchester Blvd. 
Los Angeles, California 90044 

·Certified Mail No.: 
7001 0360 0003 6702 5217 

AREXJ:>HARlVIACY 
2829 South Western Blvd. 
Los Angeles, CA 90048-3033 

Certified Mail No.: 
7001 0360 0003 6702 5224 

AREXPHARMACY 
3701 Stocker Street 
Los Angeles, California 90008 

Certified Mail No.: 
7001 0360 0003 6702 5200 

http:AREX_FIGUER.OA
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ROBERT A. GANTT 
3701 Stocker Street 
Los Angeles, California 90008 

Certified Mail No.: 
7001 0360 0003 6702 5194 

RICIIARD A. FOSTER 
320 West 122nd Street 
Los Angeles, California 90061 

Certified Mail No.: 
7001 0360 0003 6702 5187 

CLAUDE ANTHONY REESE 
1900 South PointVfew 
Los Angeles, CA 90034 

Certified Mail No.: 
7001 0360 0003 6702 5163 

JOSEPH SHEDRED ALEXANDER 
3646 Virginia Road 
Los Angeles, CA 90016 

Certified Mail No.: 
7001 0360 0003 6702 5170 

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Califol1ua the foregoing is tnle 
and COlTect and that this declaration was executed on Septenlber 9, 2004, at Los Angeles, 
Califo111ia. ' 

Judith A. Baerresen 7Y"'i6 YI'@~4d<.,/ 

Typed Nmue Signature 

SUSAN MELTON WILSON, DAG 
03583110-LA2002AD1864 
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BEFORE THE 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 


DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 


In the Matter of the Accusation Against: 


AREX PHARMACY-FIGUEROA, 

AR EX PHARMACIES, INC., 

AREX PHARMACY MANCHESTER, 

AR EX PHARMACY, 

ROBERT A. GANTT, 

RlCff-.ARD _A_. FOSTE:R, 

CLAUDE ANTHONY REESE, 


and 
JOSEPH SHEDRED ALEXANDER, 

Respondents. 

Case No. 2516 

NOTICE OF DEFENSE 

[Gov. Code §§ 11505 and 11506] 

I, the undersigned Respondent in the above-entitled proceeding, hereby acknowledge receipt of a 
copy of the Accusation; Statelnent to Respondent; Government Code sections 11507.5, 11507.6 and 
11507.7, Complainant's Request for Discovery; and two copies of a Notice of Defense. 

I hereby request a hearing to permit Ine to present my defense to the charges contained in the 
Accusation. AR-EX PHARMACY -FI GUEROA, AR-EX PHARIVLAG,Y 

MANCHESTER, AR-EX ~HAR~'1A.CY, AR-EX ',1"~. 

DATED: September 16, 2004 PHARMACIES, INC.ROBERT A. GANTT and 
CLAUDE ANTHONY REESE 

Respondent's Name 

Respondent's Signature 

Respondent's Mailing Address 
Los Angeles, CA. 90048-3033City, State and Zip Code 

Respondent's Telephone Number 

Check appropriate box: 


fi I mn represented by counsel, whose nan1e, address and telephone number appear below: 


Counsel's Nmne JONATHAN K. GOLDEN 

Counsel's Mailing Address 1880 Century Park East, Suite 300 

City, State and Zip Code Los Angeles, CA. 90067 

Counsel's Telephone Number (310) 553-3830 Fax (310) 553-1337 

1 
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o I am not now represented by counsel. If and when counsel is retained, irnnlediate notification of 
the attorney's name, address and telephone number will be filed with the Office of 
AdIninistrative Hearing and a copy sent to counsel for Complainant so that counsel will be on 
record to receive legal notices, pleadings and other papers. 

The agency taking the action described in the Accusation may have formulated guidelines to 
assist the administrative law judge in reaching an appropriate penalty. You may obtain a copy of the 
guidelines by requesting them froln the agency in writing. 
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PROOF OF SERVICE 


STATE OF CALIFORNIA, COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES 


I am en1ployed in the County of Los Angeles, State of California. I am over the age of 18 
and not a pmiy to the within action; my business address is 1880 CentulY Park East, Suite 300, 
Los Angeles, California 90067-1666. 

On September 16, 2004 , I served the foregoing document described as 
_-.-~NL'=04T~I~C"",-,E!=!-,-O~F----==::.D-=Ec.=.F-=E:!...:!:.N.!..!:S:::..=E:::!..-..________________ on the interested 
paliies in this action. 

by placing the true copies thereof enclosed in sealed envelopes addressed as stated on the 
attached 11lailing list; 

X by placing a true copy thereof enclosed in sealed envelopes addressed as follows: 
Susan Melton Wilson 
Deputy Attorney General 
300 S. Spring Street 
Suite 1702 
Los Angeles, CA. 90013 

x BY MAlL: 

~ I deposited such envelope in the mail at Los Angeles, Califo111ia. The: 
envelope was mailed with postage thereon fully prepaid. 

_ I caused such envelope to be deposited in the mail at Los Angeles, 
California. The envelope was mailed with postage thereon fully prepaid. 

I am "readily familiar" with the fIrm's practice of collection and processing conespondence for 
mailing. It is deposited with the U. S. Postal Service on that same day in the ordinary course of 
business. I mIl aware that on 11lotion of pmiy served, service is presumed invalid if postal 
cancellation date or postage meter date is more than 1 day after date of deposit for mailing in 
affidavit. 

BY PERSONAL SERVICE 

I delivered such envelope by hand to the office of the addressee. 

Executed on, Sept. 16, 2004at Los Angeles, California. 

~ 	(State) I declare under penalty of peljury under the laws of the State of Califo111ia that the 
above is true and conect. 

(Federal) I declare that I am employed in the office of a member of the bar of this Comi at 
whose direction the service was 11lade. ' 


